
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

AGENDA

APRIL 11, 2019

6:00 P.M.

Roll Call.

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes: March 14, 2019

Final Plats

Consent Agenda

(1) P-0219-05 Cathryn Pryor & Joel Abbott Are Requesting A Sixty Day Extension For 
Final Plat Approval For Resurvey Of Lots 7 And 8 Rosement 
Subdivison. The Purpose for This Request Is to Adjust A Common Lot 
Line. The Property Is Owned By Cathryn Pryor & Joel Abbott and Is 
Zoned Vestavia Hills R-2.

(2) P-0419-16 Brett Hollett Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For A Resurvey Of Lot 
10 And The East ½ Of Lot 11, Block 9 Of Biltmore Estates. The 
Purpose for This Request Is to Resurvey Five Lots Into One. The Property 
Is Owned By Village Gardens, LLC and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills B-2.

(3) P-0419-17 Bruce Winter Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Winter-Vesthaven 
Resurvey. The Purpose for This Request Is to Amend A Lot Line. The 
Property Is Owned By Jim McLane and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills R-1.

(4) P-0419-18 Shades Mountain Baptist Church Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For 
Shades Mountain Baptist Church Resurvey #2. The Purpose for This 
Request Is to Combine Lots. The Property Is Owned By Shades Mountain 
Baptist Church and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills Inst-1.

(5) P-0419-20 Holle Revocable Trust Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Holle 
Subdivision. The Purpose for This Request Is to Subdivide One Lot Into 
Two. The Property Is Owned By Holle Revocable Trust and Is Zoned 
Vestavia Hills E-2.



(6) P-0419-21 8001 Liberty Parkway LLC Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For 8001
Liberty Parkway Survey. The Purpose for This Request Is to Survey A 
Lot Out of Acreage. The Property Is Owned By 8001 Liberty Parkway 
LLC and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills PUD-PB.

Rezoning/Conditional Use Recommendations

(7) P-0419-15 Eric T. Brosch Is Requesting Conditional Use Approval For A 9.5 Foot 
(Avg.) High Fence for The Property Located At 1320 Willoughby Rd.
The Property Is Owned By Eric T. Brosch and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills 
R-2.



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

MINUTES

MARCH 14, 2019

6:00 P.M.

The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this 
date at 6:00 P.M. following posting/publication as required by Alabama law. The roll was called 
with the following:

MEMBERS PRESENT: Erica Barnes, Chair
Blaine House, Vice-Chair
Greg Gilchrist
Fred Goodwin
Jonathan Romeo
Rusty Weaver
Cheryl Cobb
Hasting Sykes

MEMBERS ABSENT: Lyle Larson

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT: Conrad Garrison, City Planner
Christopher Brady, City Engineer

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mrs. Barnes stated that the minutes of the meeting February 14, 2019 are presented for approval.

MOTION Motion to approve minutes as amended was by Mr. Romeo and second was by Mr. 
Weaver.  Voice vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes
Mr. Weaver– yes Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. House – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Final Plats



Consent Agenda

(1) P-0319-12 Audrey D. Day, III Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Resurvey Of 
Lot 3 And The North ½ Of Lot 4, Block 10 Biltmore Estates. The 
Purpose for This Request Is to Resurvey 1.5 Lots. The Property Is Owned 
By Audrey D. Day, III and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills R-2.

(2) P-0319-13 Village Gardens, LLC Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Village 
Gardens. The Purpose for This Request Is to Resurvey Five Lots Into One.
The Property Is Owned By Village Gardens, LLC and Is Zoned Vestavia 
Hills B-2.

(3) P-0319-14 Jim McLane Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For McLane’s Resurvey.
The Purpose for This Request Is to Amend A Lot Line. The Property Is 
Owned By Jim McLane and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills R-1.

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to approve items 1-3. Second was by Ms. Cobb.
Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Larson – yes
Mr. Weaver– yes Ms. Cobb – yes
Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Rezoning/Conditional Use Recommendations:

P-1011-22 Anthony F. & Margaret Serra Is Requesting Conditional Use Approval For
Automotive Sales, Automotive Services-Major And Minor, Including 
Mechanical And Collision Repair for The Property Located At 1476 
Montgomery Hwy. The Property Is Owned By Anthony F. & Margaret 
Serra and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills B-2.

Mr. Garrison explained the background of the request. Mr. Brady explained the improvements the 
owners have made to the property to mitigate flooding issues.

Alton Parker was present to answer any questions.

Mrs. Barnes opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the Commission 
concerning this request, Mrs. Barnes closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a motion.

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend Conditional Use Approval For 
Automotive Sales, Automotive Services-Major And Minor, Including Mechanical And Collision 
Repair for The Property Located At 1476 Montgomery Hwy. Second was by Mr. Weaver. Motion 
was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:



Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes
Mr. Weaver– yes Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. House – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

P-0319-07 St. Stephen’s Episcopal Church Is Requesting Conditional Use Approval For Four 
Beehives for The Property Located At 3788 Crosshaven Dr. The Property Is 
Owned By St. Stephen’s Episcopal Church and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills R-4.

Mr. Garrison explained the background of the request. He stated the Church was constructing a 
public garden and would like hives to help pollinate the flowers.

Chris Williams was present to answer any questions.

Ms. Cobb asked how high the fence would be. Mr. Williams answered 6’.

Mrs. Barnes opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the Commission 
concerning this request, Mrs. Barnes closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a motion.

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend Conditional Use Approval For An 
Installation Of Four Beehives Surrounded by a Six Foot High Fence for The Property Located At 
3788 Crosshaven Drive. Second was by Mr. Weaver. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as 
follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes
Mr. Weaver– yes Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. House – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

P-0319-08 Jonathan B. Culver Is Requesting Rezoning for 3784 Poe Dr. from Vestavia 
Hills R-4 to Vestavia Hills R-9 For The Purpose Of New Residential
Development. 

P-0319-09 Tucker And Company, LLC Is Requesting Rezoning for 3785 Glass Dr. 
from Vestavia Hills R-4 to Vestavia Hills R-9 For The Purpose Of New 
Residential Development. 

Mr. Garrison explained the background of the request. The rezoning was requested so the lot on 
Glass Dr. may access a sewer line, per Jefferson County requirements.

Jason Kessler and Chris Tucker were present to answer any questions.

Ms. Cobb asked if a septic system is an option. Mr. Tucker states the County denied the septic 
permit.

Mrs. Barnes opened the floor for a public hearing.  



Alfred Kirkpatrick, 3787 Glass Dr., asked was concerned about drainage. Mr. Brady explained the 
City drainage requirements.

Mrs. Barnes closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a motion.

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend Rezoning From Vestavia Hills R-4 To 
Vestavia Hills R-9 for The Property Located At 3784 Poe Dr. with the following conditions:

A) Rezoning is for detached residential use only;
B) Rezoning based on lot layout and setbacks presented;
C) Rezoning based on  covenants presented.

Second was by Mr. Weaver. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes
Mr. Weaver– yes Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. House – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend Rezoning From Vestavia Hills R-4 To 
Vestavia Hills R-9 for The Property Located At 3785 Glass Dr. with the following conditions:

D) Rezoning is for detached residential use only;
E) Rezoning based on lot layout and setbacks presented;
F) Rezoning based on  covenants presented.

Second was by Mr. House. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes
Mr. Weaver– yes Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. House – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

P-0319-10 Arthur Powell Is Requesting Rezoning for 3984 & 3988 Natchez Dr. from 
Vestavia Hills R-4 to Vestavia Hills R-9 For The Purpose Of New 
Residential Development. 

Mr. Garrison explained the background of the request. He stated the duplex’s would be replaced by 
single family homes.

Jason Kessler was present to answer any questions and explained the request.

Mrs. Barnes opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the Commission 
concerning this request, Mrs. Barnes closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a motion.

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend Rezoning from Vestavia Hills R-4 to 
Vestavia Hills R-9 for the property located At 3984 & 3988 Natchez Drive conditioned on the sire 
plan presented. Second was by Mr. Weaver. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Sykes – yes



Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes
Mr. Weaver– yes Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. House – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

P-0319-11 Lamar Advertising Is Requesting Conditional Use Approval For A Digital 
Buildboard for The Property Located At 1506 Montgomery Hwy. The 
Property Is Owned By Royal Automotive and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills B-3.

Mr. Garrison explained the background of the request. 

Tom Trailor was present to answer any questions and explained the request. He stated 6 billboards 
in the City would be removed if approval is granted for the new digital billboard.

Mrs. Barnes asked if the new billboard would meet all appropriate codes. Mr. Trailor stated it 
would.

Mr. Goodwin asked what the height of the billboard would be. Mr. Trailor stated it would be 50’.

Mrs. Barnes if there are any compatible examples near by. Mr. Trailor stated there is a digital 
billboard in the City on the other side of I-65.

Ms. Cobb asked how many advertising slots would be on the billboard per minute. Mr. Trailor 
stated there would be 6-8 slots with any unsold available to the City.

Mrs. Barnes asked what the development schedule would be. Mr. Trailor stated if the application is 
approved the old signs would be dismantled within 90 days and then the new structure would be 
built after.

Mr. Goodwin inquired on the length of the ground lease for the sign. Mr. Trailor stated it would be 
for 10 years with automatic renewals.

Mr. House stated he did not believe that the application did not meet all 10 requirements listed in 
the zoning ordinance, specifically #1, 3, & 5.

Other members of the Commission agreed.

Mrs. Barnes opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the Commission 
concerning this request, Mrs. Barnes closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a motion.

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend Conditional Use Approval For The 
Digital Billboards for The Property Located At 1506 Montgomery Highway with the following 
condition:

a) The six (6) billboards presented must be dismantled before the new digital billboards 
constructed.

Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – no Mr. Sykes – yes



Mr. Romeo – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes
Mr. Weaver– yes Ms. Cobb – no
Mr. House – no Mrs. Barnes – no
Motion failed due to the application not meeting the requirements stated in Section 13.3.4.1, 3, & 
5.

Conrad Garrison, City Planner



Planning and Zoning Minutes
Page 7



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     FEBRUARY 14, 2019

CASE: P-0219-05

REQUESTED ACTION: Final Plat Approval To Resurvey Lots 7 and 8 of
Rosemont Subdivision and to adjust the common lot line.

ADDRESS/LOCATION: Rosemont Place

APPLICANT/OWNER: Cathryn Pryor/ Joel Abbott & Che Abbott

REPRESENTING AGENT: Jason Kessler

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Plat is to grant what is currently part of Lot 7, with Lot 
8’s driveway on it to Lot 8. In return, Lot 7 will have a piece of Lot 8. The lots are 
currently zoned R-1.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: This request is consistent with 
the plan for low density residential.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted

4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted









1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     April 11, 2019

CASE: P-0419-16

REQUESTED ACTION: Final Plat Approval To Resurvey Lot 10 and 1/2 Of Lot 
9 Of Biltmore Estates. 

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 2032 Chestnut Road

APPLICANT/OWNER: Brett Hollett

REPRESENTING AGENT: Andrew Lange

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Plat is to resurvey two lots in the Biltmore Estates 
community. The applicant is seeking to merge Lot 10 and the East half of Lot 9. The 
purpose of this request is to meet current code and to have these lots officially merged 
and recorded in order to pull a building permit. Combined lot does not meet lot size 
and width and will receive a variance on 4/18. Map can be signed after. The lots are 
currently zoned R-2.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: This request is consistent with 
the plan for low density residential.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted

4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted









1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     APRIL 11, 2019

CASE: P-0419-17

REQUESTED ACTION: Final Plat Approval of Winter-Vesthaven Resurvey

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 1364 & 1372 Starcross Drive

APPLICANT/OWNER: Bruce Winter

REPRESENTING AGENT: Dave Arrington 

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Plat is to resurvey Lot 14A and Lot 15A on Starcross 
Drive to adjust the lot lines of the two properties. The lots are currently zoned R-1.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: This request is consistent with 
the plan for low density residential.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted

4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted









1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     APRIL 11, 2019

CASE: P-0419-18

REQUESTED ACTION: Final Plat Approval To Resurvey Two Lots Columbiana 
Road.

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 2017 & 2053 Columbiana Road

APPLICANT/OWNER: Shades Mountain Baptist Church

REPRESENTING AGENT: Tom Boston

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Plat is to resurvey Lot 1 and Lot 9 on Columbiana 
Road to combine the two properties. A 20’ sanitary sewer easement will exist through 
the center and a drainage easement at south end of the property. The lots are currently 
zoned Inst-1.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: This request is consistent with 
the plan for institutional district.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted

4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted









1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     APRIL 11, 2019

CASE: P-0419-20

REQUESTED ACTION: Final Plat Approval To Resurvey Lot On Dolly Ridge 
Road And Divide Into Two Lots

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 4557 Dolly Ridge Road

APPLICANT/OWNER: Holle Revocable Trust

REPRESENTING AGENT: Bob Easley

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Plat is to resurvey 7.5 acre lot at 4557 Dolly Ridge 
Road and subdivide into two lot (Lots 1 & 2). The lot width and lot size meet the 
minimum requirement for zoning. There is a 10’ wall easement at the Northwest end 
of Lot 2. The lots are currently zoned E-2.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: This request is consistent with 
the plan for residential estate district.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted

4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted









LO
T

W
ID

TH
A

T
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
LI

N
E

IS
17

7.
90

'

LO
T

W
ID

TH
A

T
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
LI

N
E

IS
19

3.
52

'





1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     APRIL 11, 2019

CASE: P-0419-21

REQUESTED ACTION: Final Plat Approval To Resurvey Lot On Liberty 
Parkway

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 8001 Liberty Parkway

APPLICANT/OWNER: 8001 Liberty Parkway, LLC

REPRESENTING AGENT: Joseph Breighner, Jr

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Plat is to resurvey acreage into one lot at 8001 Liberty 
Parkway. There is also a 20’sanitary sewer easement running through the north end of 
the lot. The lots are currently zoned PUD-PB.

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: This request is consistent with 
the plan for planned unit development.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted

4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted









1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     APRIL 11, 2019

CASE: P-0419-15

REQUESTED ACTION: Conditional Use Approval For Installation Of Privacy 
Fence

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 1320 Willoughby Road

APPLICANT/OWNER: Eric Brosch

GENERAL DISCUSSION: The fence is currently constructed and used to block the 
line of sight from neighbor’s house into the backyard, living room, and kitchen. The 
privacy fence will be 9.5’ (at its peak) at the midway point of the fence. The applicant 
states that the neighbor’s kitchen window and back deck sit at an elevated position, at 
least 10’ above the applicant’s house. The applicant contends this would also prevent 
automobile exhaust and light pollution of the neighboring house from intruding into 
their backyard. The property is currently zoned R-2.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: Not recommended over 8’















From: Greer Massey
To: Keith Blanton; Conrad Garrison
Subject: 1320 Willoughby Rd Fence
Date: Thursday, January 31, 2019 11:19:31 AM

Hi Keith and Conrad

In November our neighbors installed a fence along the property line by our driveway that in many places is 10ft tall.
It is not made of pressure treated wood but is make of interior wood. It does not fit with the neighborhood. They did
not apply for a permit, and it is our understanding that a stop work order was placed on the work. I spoke with
Conrad and he said a variance had not been applied for so I wanted to check on the status of the permit. Thank you
for your help with this issue. The address is 1320 Willoughby Rd

Sent from my iPad


